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DAY 1 – 15 September 2016 

 

  [2.02 pm] 

 

SJH:   Yes, thank you. Well, welcome to this pre-hearing meeting for an 5 

application to rezone or a submission to rezone 112 Waimairi Road.  

Those who have appeared a number of times here will understand that 

the purpose of this hearing is to put in place the various timetable 

mechanisms required for the hearing of the submissions, both the 

evidence and the legal submissions.   10 

 

 I will go through and record the submitters present today just for the 

record and I will have you given a microphone if you are sitting at the 

back.  If you would be good enough because it is all being typed, to 

identify both your name and, if you do remember it, your submission 15 

number.  So Ms Scott, you are for the Council obviously? 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, good afternoon, sir. 

 

SJH:   And, Ms Watson, you are for the University? 20 

 

MS WATSON:   Yes, sir. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Now, if we go along the back row first. 

 25 

MR HARDING:   My name is Peter Harding, the Ilam and Upper Riccarton 

Residents Association and W3 is what I have got here. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.   

 30 

MR ENGLISH:   Richard English, W4. 

 

SJH:   So you are submitting in your own right, Mr English? 

 

MR ENGLISH:   That is correct. 35 

 

MR SOUTHON:   Andrew Southon, W2. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.   

 40 

MR McGROUTHER:    Campbell McGrouther for Jack Elder Properties, W1. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Now, Ms Scott, is there a statement of issues, I imagine it is 

fairly narrow? 

 45 
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MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir, there is, it is attached to the Council’s memorandum 

that was filed. 

 

SJH:   Right, thank you. 

 5 

MS SCOTT:   There are just four issues listed there, welcome any feedback 

from submitters but they are fairly focused, sir. 

 

SJH:   All right.  Well, I will run through the submitters.  Mr Harding first, are 

you satisfied that those issues satisfactorily cover the matters before the 10 

Panel? 

 

  [2.05 pm] 

 

MR HARDING:   Yes, we are, Sir John, but we would if we could add another.  15 

We agree with the Council’s summation of the issues but we would like 

to add one that we raised in our submission with respect to the status of 

the narrow strip of land between Nos 112 and 122 Waimairi Road. 

 

SJH:   Sorry, 112 and 122? 20 

 

MR HARDING:   Yes, just a narrow strip.   

 

SJH:   And that should go in as C I take it?  Or A, B would that be C or is it a 

completely separate item? 25 

 

MR HARDING:   It is a completely separate item. 

 

SJH:   Right, so you want to add in 5 - - - 

 30 

MR HARDING:   Yes please. 

 

SJH:   - - - what is the status of the narrow strip of land between 112 and 122? 

 

MR HARDING:   That is correct, sir. 35 

 

SJH:   Right. 

 

MR HARDING:   Thank you. 

 40 

SJH:   Ms Scott, any objection to that? 

 

MS SCOTT:   No objection, sir. 

 

SJH:   All right.  Mr English? 45 
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MR ENGLISH:   No, with that amendment I am fine with the list, thank you. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Sorry, I can’t remember all your names. 

 

MR SOUTHON:   Yes, likewise I am happy. 5 

 

SJH:   All right.  Yes? 

 

MR McGROUTHER:   Yes, we are happy with that. 

 10 

SJH:   Thank you, all right.  Just to explore this I understand the Council has 

made efforts to resolve the matters with the submitters.  I will just run 

through the submitters, would it be of assistance if the Panel initiated a 

Panel sponsored mediation as we have done in other hearings or are the 

issues so entrenched it won’t change anything? 15 

 

MR HARDING:   I hesitate to say that it is not worth talking about, it is always 

worthwhile but I think everybody probably understands the issue we 

have. 

 20 

SJH:   So in other words you are saying we are better just to go straight to the 

hearing? 

 

MR HARDING:   It probably would be a saving of time, yes. 

 25 

SJH:   Okay, thank you.  Well, let us see, does anyone take a contrary view 

among the submitters?  Mr English? 

 

MR ENGLISH:   No, I agree, sir. 

 30 

SJH:   Right. 

 

MR McGROUTHER:   I actually think it would be worth discussing having a 

pre-meeting but if there is one that is not I suppose it doesn’t matter my 

opinion but - - - 35 

 

SJH:   Okay.  Well, the difficulty is we have to bring somebody in at quite 

serious expense for something that has been attempted as I understand 

it to date, and Mr Harding and Mr English in particular have some 

experience in these hearings and I would be guided somewhat by their 40 

position because they understand the processes, so you are content to 

go straight to the hearing? 

 

MR McGROUTHER:   Yes. 

 45 
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SJH:   Thank you.  Now, I just better check with the Secretariat, do we have 

late submitters. 

 

MS……….:   W6. 

 5 

MS TING:   Hello, my name is Giam She Ting, address 121 Waimairi Road, 

Ilam. 

 

MR LEE:   121 Waimairi Road. 

 10 

SJH:   You are husband wife? 

 

MS TING:   Yes. 

 

SJH:   Right, thank you.  Well, we have already started but I will go over it 15 

again.  The purpose of this hearing today is to put in place – I am sorry, 

it would be rather helpful if you would listen.  Can you hear me? 

 

 Are you comfortable to speak in English or do you need an interpreter. 

 20 

 All right.  Do you understand the purpose of the hearing today is to 

identify the issues between the submitters, that is the University and 

you other submitters who are residents, and the position of the Council.  

On the screen behind me you will see the issues as framed by the City 

Council for the Panel.  At the request of submitters I have added a fifth 25 

issue to that which is to determine the status of a narrow strip of land 

between 112 and 122 Waimairi Road. 

 

 Do you have any other issues you want added to that list? 

 30 

  [2.10 pm] 

 

MR LEE:   No other issue. 

 

SJH:   All right, thank you.  We have dealt with the question of mediation so I 35 

will just pass that by.  The redline version has been filed.  Thank you.  

The suggested date for your evidence, Ms Scott, is 4 pm on 

Wednesday, 21 September, can you manage that given it is a narrow 

issue? 

 40 

MS SCOTT:  Yes.  No, sir, we have been aware of that date so that is okay.  

Just an update, I have liaised with my friend Ms Watson for the 

University, and we have discussed filing one statement of planning 

evidence and one of urban design between the Council and the 

University and adopting the evidence. And subject to some final 45 
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instructions that is the intention moving forward which will mean the 

University would file at the same time as the Council. 

 

SJH:   Which is next Wednesday? 

 5 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir. 

 

SJH:   All right.  Can you confirm that, Ms Watson? 

 

MS WATSON:   Yes, sir. 10 

 

SJH:   Submitters response by Wednesday, 28 September, 4 pm, Mr Harding? 

 

MR HARDING:   Yes, sir, that is fine. 

 15 

SJH:   Mr English? 

 

MR ENGLISH:   Yes, that is fine. 

 

SJH:   Again my apologies? 20 

 

MR SOUTHON:  Yes. 

 

MR McGROUTHER:   Yes, that is fine, thank you. 

 25 

SJH:   And Mr and Mrs Ting?  Do you understand what we mean by evidence 

and the difference between evidence and a submission? 

 

 Could you perhaps pass that on, Mr Ball, I didn’t hear it? 

 30 

MR BALL:   So they are saying that because they have just arrived they are not 

clear so you may want to ask them again whether they are clear on the 

difference. 

 

SJH:   Well, I am not clear what they mean they have just arrived today. 35 

 

MS TING:   Just arrived we are late you see so in the front part we didn’t listen 

from you or know what you are talking about. 

 

SJH:   You haven’t arrived in Christchurch just today?  You are living in 40 

121 Waimairi Road? 

 

MS TING:   Yes, just that we are late. 

 

SJH:   You are living in 121 Waimairi Road? 45 

 

MS TING:   Yes. 
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SJH:   All right.  Well, let me take it one step at a time, do you understand the 

difference between evidence and a submission? 

 

MS TING:   Can you explain again? 5 

 

SJH:   A submission is where you come along and speak to your concerns and 

tell the Panel why it is you think this submission of the University’s 

should not be granted.  You cannot be cross-examined by the lawyers 

for the Council or the University but you may be questioned by the 10 

Panel.  Evidence is a matter that is given on oath, you may be cross-

examined on that evidence by the other submitters but also the lawyers 

for the Council and the lawyers for the University and you can be 

questioned by the Panel.  Now, it is your choice whether you file 

evidence or whether you wish simply to make a submission? 15 

 

  [2.15 pm] 

 

MR LEE:   We don’t file any evidence.   

 20 

SJH:   I am sorry, would you mind just speaking into the microphone so I could 

hear. 

 

MR LEE:   We come here to find out, to observe and that what we in the past 

say we do not wholly agree with the University trying to change the 25 

zoning because we thought it might affect our security and also the 

price value of our property there and the nature of the residential 

environment.  That is why we come here to - - - 

 

SJH:   No, I understand that and that is a matter at the full hearing with all 30 

Panel members.  We are not deciding that today, we are just preparing 

for a hearing, for a full hearing on that with the other Panel members 

with me as well, but is a question with that hearing at that hearing, do 

you want to simply submit and tell me your concerns about the 

University’s proposal or do you wish to give it by way of sworn 35 

evidence? 

 

MS TING:   What is the latest date we must submit? 

 

SJH:   Well, submit or evidence it is by Wednesday, 28 September at 4 pm and 40 

after the hearing Mr Ball will take this a little further and try and 

explain it a little more to you and tell you the form of the document, 

okay? 

 

MS TING:   Yes. 45 
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SJH:   All right, thank you.  Rebuttal evidence Friday, 30 September at 4 pm. 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir. 

 

SJH:   Thank you, and that may be joint rebuttal? 5 

 

MS SCOTT:   Yes, sir, it wouldn’t be joint but we would adopt the evidence, 

thank you. 

 

SJH:   Those that have been here before among the submitters would know that 10 

the standard time for cross-examination, if leave is granted, is 

10 minutes but again can I explain to the submitters who have not been 

here previously, the Order in Council requires that there needs to be 

leave granted by the Chair of the Panel for cross-examination.  So if 

any submitters wish to cross-examine they are to file their application 15 

for cross-examination by 12 noon on Monday, 3 October. Again, 

Mr Ball, if you would be good enough to assist. 

 

 The standard time is 10 minutes, if you wish to have longer than that 

you need to apply for that extra time in your submission.  Now, I 20 

overlooked Mr Harding and other submitters, do any of you wish to 

call expert evidence or will it be lay evidence? 

 

MR HARDING:   It will be lay evidence for us, Sir John. 

 25 

SJH:   Is anybody in a different position? 

 

MR SOUTHON:  Well, we are currently getting a valuer to look at our 

property, he may write a letter to support our case. 

 30 

SJH:   All right.  Well, just to assist you I need to explain that if you do wish to 

rely on valuation evidence if the valuer is not here to be questioned and 

it is not in sworn evidential form the Panel may take the view that it 

can’t attach very much weight to that evidence because it has not been 

tested in the normal way, do you understand that? 35 

 

MR SOUTHON:   Yes. 

 

SJH:   All right.  So if you wish to file evidence from that valuer it will be in 

the same timeframe that I mentioned earlier, okay? 40 

 

MR SOUTHON:   Thank you, yes. 

 

MR McGROUTHER:   Sorry, it will just be lay evidence. 

 45 
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SJH:   All right.  And again if you would explain it, Mr Ball.  The evidence of 

course is pre-circulated.  If you wish to serve using the website it is 

required to be filed by 3 pm so if you are filing it in person it is 4 pm.   

 

  [2.20 pm] 5 

 

 If you wish it to serve on other parties through the website it needs to 

be 3 pm on the same day.  It is possible to file late documents but you 

must ask for leave to file such late documents giving reasons.  Again 

the evidence will be pre-read by the Panel and the witnesses both for 10 

the Council and the represented submitter, the University, or for the 

submitters have 10 minutes to give a highlights package of their 

evidence.   

 

 If there is to be any opening legal submissions from any party they 15 

need to advise the Secretariat three working days prior so we can build 

it into the timetable and it can be filed 4 pm the day before the hearing.  

Any closing legal directions we will direct in the course of the hearing 

and the matter will be set down for a one day hearing on Thursday, 

6 October at 10 am.   20 

 

 Ms Scott, do you have any questions? 

 

MS SCOTT:   No, I don’t, sir. 

 25 

SJH:   Ms Watson? 

 

MS WATSON:   No, sir. 

 

SJH:   Mr Harding? 30 

 

MR HARDING:   No, sir. 

 

SJH:   Mr English? 

 35 

MR ENGLISH:   No, sir. 

 

MR McGROUTHER:   No, sir. 

 

SJH:   Thank you.  Mr and Mrs Ting, do you have any questions? 40 

 

MS TING:   No, sir. 

 

SJH:   All right, well, I will adjourn now, but if you remain behind and talk to 

Mr Ball and the same applies to any other of the submitters who 45 

haven’t been here previously or even if they have been, he will assist 
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you as to the form and manner of the documents you need to file and 

explain further the timelines and the process of the hearing.  Thank 

you. 

 

MATTER ADJOURNED AT 2.21 PM UNTIL 5 

THURSDAY, 6 OCTOBER 2016 


